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2023 Agenda of Annual Meeting of Shareholders of
Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Time: 9:00 a.m. on (Friday), June 9th, 2023

Place: 4F, Building E, No. 19-11, Sanchong Road, Nangang District, Taipei City(Nankang

Software Incubator)

Meeting Procedure:

I. Call the Meeting to Order
II. Chairperson Remarks

III. Management Presentation (Company Reports)
1. The 2022 Business Report.
2. Audit committee’s Review Report.

3. The 2022 distribution of remuneration to employees and directors.

IV. Proposals for Ratification
1 Adoption of 2022 Financial Statements.

2. Adoption of the Proposal for Distribution of 2022 Profits.

V. Discussions
1.  Amendment to the "Company Corporate Charter”.

2. Amendment to the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting”.
VI. Extemporary Motions

VII. Adjournment



Management Presentation (Company Reports)

Proposal 1:
Proposal: The 2022 Business Report.
Explanation: 1. The 2022 Business Report is attached as page 5~6.

2. The Chairman reports on business operation in 2022.

Proposal 2:

Proposal: Audit committee’s Review Report

Explanation: 1. The financial statements of Flytech covering FY2022 was audited and
reviewed by the audit committee. The “Audit committee’s Review Report”,
“Auditors’ Report” and related statements were exhibited in page 7~27 in the
manual.

2. The head of Audit committee to report Audit committee’s Review Report.

Proposal 3:

Proposal: The 2022 distribution of remuneration to employees and directors.

Explanation: 1. According to the Articles of Incorporation of Flytech: the Company shall
appropriate 3%~15% as remuneration to employees and no more than 3% as
remuneration to Directors from its earnings of the year.

2. The Compensation Committee, audit committee and the Board resloved on
March 17, 2023 to appropriate NT$110,000,000 as remunerations to
employees and NT$5,600,000 as remunerations to Directors.



Proposal 1:

Proposals for Ratification

(Proposed by the Board)

Proposal: Adoption of the 2022 Financial Statements.

Explanation:

Resolution:

Proposal 2:

1. The business report and financial statements (including the consolidated

financial statements) of 2022 have been passed by the Board in a session
held on March 17, 2023 where the financial statements (including the
consolidated financial statements) have been audited by Wei-Ming Shih,CPA
and Huei-Chen Chang,CPA, of KPMG Taiwan with certification, and have
been referred to the audit committee for review on March 17, 2023.

2. Please refer to page 7~27 for details.

(Proposed by the Board)

Proposal: Adoption of the Proposal for Distribution of 2022 Profits

Explanation:

Resolution:

1. To maintain a stable dividend policy and vitalize the financial structure, the

Company appropriated 10% of its earnings in 2022 as legal reserve
amounting to NT$104,315,293.

. The Board proposed to payout cash dividend to shareholders amounting to

NT$786,842,782 at NT$5.5/share in accordance with the Articles of
Incorporation. The calculation is rounded to the nearest TWD and the
fraction was included as a part of other incomes of the Company. The
proposal will be presented to the regular session of the Shareholders’
Meeting for ratification with authorization to the Chairman to set the
ex-dividend day, payment day, and to handle related matters.

. The quantity of outstanding shares may be affected by the repurchase of

treasury shares by the Company for assignment to the employees, the
exercise of ESO by employees for subscription of shares, and the conversion
of domestic convertible bonds into shares prior to the ex-dividend day, to the
extent that the ratio of dividend payment to the shareholders will be subject
to adjustment; the Chairman shall be authorized to handle the change.

. For information on the distribution of net income, Please refer to page 28 for

details.



Discussions

Proposal 1:  (Proposed by the Board)
Proposal: Amendment to the "Company Corporate Charter”

Explanation: The Company desires to amend the "Company Corporate Charter” in accordance with
Taiwan government updated regulations.. The “Company Corporate Charter”” before and
after amendment. Please refer to page 29 for details.

Resolution:

Proposal 2:  (Proposed by the Board)
Proposal: Amendment to the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting”

Explanation: The Company desires to amend the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” in
accordance with Taiwan government updated regulations.. The “Rules of Procedure for
Shareholder Meeting” before and after amendment. Please refer to page 30~50 for
details.

Extemporary Motions

Adjournment



Appendix 1

Business Report

Dear shareholders,

With the advent of the post-pandemic era, more and more countries have been lifting lockdowns. For
the past few years, Flytech has cultivated the business relationships with the new customers as well as
the existed customers for new territory of applications or projects. All these efforts came with profitable
results in 2022. Also, the product strategy of promoting the Non-POS segment has proved a successful
move to increase profitability. Through business growth and product mix, Flytech hit nearly NT$2
billion in gross profit for 2022, which was not only an increase of 16% against 2021 but also broke the
record in Flytech history. The net income attributed to the owner of parent company reached NT$1
billion, representing a 53% growth with an earning of NT$7.29 per share. Obviously, the performance
in terms of profitability was very outstanding in 2022.

Flytech has committed itself to domain studies in recent years, aiming at both satisfied and unsatisfied
needs in different operating spots of end-users, and has discussed product designs with the customers to
develop new products for intelligent solutions. For hardware section, Flytech continues to deepen the
fields in catering, retail, medical care, and industrial automation so as to provide customers with more
choices. Moreover, the subsidiary Inefi focuses on providing software services that enable our
customers to remotely monitor how their hardware devices work on the sites of end-users. With the
deployment of Inefi service, which is going commercial this year, Flytech will become more
competitive in the market. For software section, the subsidiary Berry AI possesses the leading Al
technology in machine learning, which has gained positive feedback for process improvement in the
chain restaurants. Berry Al is also expected to generate revenue this year.

Flytech is deeply convinced that the core to the corporate sustainability is corporate governance.
According to the 2022 Corporate Governance Evaluation conducted by TWSE, Flytech has been
examined and ranked in the percentile of 6% to 20% for five straight years. Moreover, Flytech was
awarded Excellence in Corporate Social Responsibility in 2021 for the first attempt at the nomination.
In 2022, the 11" place in medium-sized enterprises was conferred on Flytech for Excellence in
Corporate Social Responsibility. Flytech also pays attention to sustainability. Not only have we
published three ESG reports, but we also have reacted to global climate change actively. Flytech had
completed the first GHG Inventory Report in 2021 in advance of the requirement from Financial
Supervisory Commission and obtained ISO 14064-1. Also, Flytech embarked on the energy
management plan in the second half of 2022 and aimed to complete the track of carbon footprint for
certain portion of Flytech products and establish a platform for carbon management in 2023. All these
works represent Flytech’s determination to contribute to net zero and carbon neutral by 2050.

In the trend of developing intelligent technology, Flytech strives to offer more intelligent solutions to
our customers as well as end-users to drive business growth and profitability. Although POS is the
fundamental of Flytech, the diversity of Non-POS - Panel PC in particular - allows the players in the
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value chain to review the needs that could better satisfy the business operation. As a result, a
better-designed product could come out through the brainstorming and interaction with Flytech. In
addition to the main business, Flytech keeps searching outstanding start-ups and expects to turn their
unique know-how into business model. In the past five years, Flytech worked with StarFab, a start-up
accelerator, to find potential start-up teams and evaluate whether their core technologies can solve
some pain points in the real world and whether they can be differentiated from the current or
comparable technologies. In the process of sponsoring the start-ups, Flytech look forward to finding
new opportunities and reproducible business models because we believe this is the key to compete in
the rapidly-changing global market.

May you all have a wonderful year of 2023

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Lam, Tai Seng, Chairman
Chuo, Chun Hung, Manager

Wu, Pi Tao, Accountant in charge



Appendix 2

Audit Committee’s Review Report

To: The 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of This Company

We reviewed the financial statements (including the consolidated financial statements) of Flytech
Technology Co., Ltd. in 2022, which have been audited by Wei-Ming Shih,CPA and Huei-Chen
Chang,CPA, with the issuance of the Auditors’ Report. We also reviewed the business report and the
proposal for the distribution of earnings, which we found to be conforming to applicable laws and
principles. We hereby report on our review pursuant to Article 14-4 of the Securities Exchange Law

and Article 219 of the Company Law.

Best regards

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
The head of Audit Committee: Hsieh, Han Chang

March 17, 2023



Appendix 3

KPMG $et1asq15580

KPMG 4
&AL F 10615 M EcE TRl &AL 1015 ) W Tel + BBE 2 5101 6666
§BF., TAIPEI 101 TOWER, No. 7, Sec. 5, m N Fax + 586 I 8101 5667
XInyl Road, Talpel Clty 110615, Talwan {R.0.C.) #@ i wen  kpmg.comiw
Independent Auditors® Report
To the Board of Dhirectors
Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.:

Opinion

We have andited the consohdated financial statements of Flytech Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Company™) and
its subsidiaries (the “ Group™), which compnse the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, and the consolidated statements of comprebensive income, changes in equuty and cash flows for the years
then ended. and notes to the consohdated financial statements, meluding a summary of sigmficant accounting
policies.

In our opimion, the accompanying consolidated finaneial statements present fawrly, 1n all matenal respects, the
consolidated financial positon of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and 1t: consolidated financyal
performance and 1ts consolidated cash flows for the vears then ended m accordance with the Regulatons
Goverming the Preparation of Fmanecial Reports by Securifies Issuers and with the Imternational Financial
Reportng Standards (“IFRS5s7), International Accountng Standards (“LA5Ss™), Interpretations developed by the
International Finaneial Feporing Interpretations Commattes (“IFRIC™) or the former Standing Interpretabions
Computtes (“5ICT) endorsed and 155ued mto effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republhic of
China.

Baszis for Opinion

We conducted our audit= in accordance with the Repulations Goverming Audihing and Attestation of Financyal
Statements by Certified Publhic Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Chr
responstbilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Finaneial Statements section of our report. We are mdependent of the Group in accordance with
The Morm of Professional Ethies for Certified Public Accountant of the REepublie of China, and we have
fulfilled ouwr other ethical responsibalities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtamned 15 sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis of our opimon.

Eer Aundit Matters

Eey audit matters are those matters that, m our professional judgment. were of most sigrificance 1 our andit of
the consohidated financial statements of the current penod. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of consolidated financial statements as a wheole, and in formung our opimon thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opimon on these matters,

EPRG, Tk sartarship 55d & recke e of se PG pleha | crpanbea e of e pasient Tambe e afleted Wi EPAEG imenstons] Lmised o prissts Coplak coemps sy Brmesd bey gracmrgass
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KPMG

4-1

Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the vear ended December 31, 2022 are
stated as follows:
1. Revenue recogmuton
Eefer to Note 4{n) for accounting pobhey on revenne recogmotion and Mote §(s) for related disclosures of the
notes to the consolhidared financial statements
i ) i

Revenue 15 recognized depending on the vanous trade terms agreed with customers. This exposes the Group
to the nzk that the sales transactions made close to the balance sheet date are not recorded m the appropriate
penod. Consequently. the revenue recogninon has been 1dentified a: one of the key audit matters.

operating effectivenes: of the Group’ s miernal controls over financial reporting m the sales; assessmg
whether revenue 15 recognized based on the trade terms wath customers through reviewmp the related sales
confracts or other trade docoments; performing a sample test on the sales transachons that tock place before
and after the balance sheet date. 23 well a3 reviewing and understanding the reasonableness for any 1dennfied
sagnificant sales returns and allowances that took place after the balance sheet date to ensure that revenue
was recognized m the appropnate penod.
2. Imparrment of goodwanll
Rafer to Note 4(1) for accounting policy on unparment of non-financial assets, Note 5(b) for uncertamty of

accounhng estimates and assomphons for gooduwnll mparment, and Note 8k} for elated disclosures of the
notes to the comsohidated financial statements.

Boaiaas 3 ”
Goodwnll ansng from busmess combinations 15 annually subject to mparment test or when there are
mdications that poodenll may bave been mmpaired The assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwnll
involves management s judgment and eshmanon. Accordingly, the assessment of mparment of goodwll has
been identified as one of the key audst matters.

How the matter was addressed in owr audit

In relanon to the key andit matter above, our pnincipal audit procedures mcluded obtaimng the asseszment of
poodwill mpamment provided by the management; assesung the appropratensss of the valuanon model and
key assumphons, inclodmg the discount rate, expected sales growth rate and foture cash flow projechons,
used by the management in measunng the recoverable amount; performing a senumity analynis of key
assumphons and results; and assessing the adequacy of disclosures of related mformaton on evaluation of
soodwill

Other Matter

The Company has addinonally prepared its parent-companyv-only financial statements a: of and for the vears
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, on which we have 155ued an unmodified audst opimon.



KPMG

4.2

Rerponsbilities of Management amd Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Fimancial
Statements

Management 1: responsible for the preparation and faur presentanon of the consobdated financial statements 1n
accordance with the Eegnlations Governing the Preparation of Fmancizl Reports by Secunbes Issoers and wath
the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIC, SIC endorsed and i135ued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commassion of the
Republic of Chmma. and for such mmternal comtrol as managpement determines 15 mecessary to enable the
preparation of consobidated financial statements that are free from matenal msstement, whether due to frand
o error.

In preparng the consolidated financial statements, management 15 responsible for assessng the Group’s ability
to conhoue as a2 gomg concern, disclosing, as appheable, matters related to going concern and using the pomge
copcern bass of accountng unless management either ntends to hqudate the Group or to cease operanons, or
has no realishie alternative but to do =o.

Those charged with govemance (including the Audit Committes) are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
Auditor:” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Conzolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consobidated financial statements as a
whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to frand or emor, and to 155ue an auditors™ report that
includes our opinion. Feasonable assuwrance 15 a high level of assurance, but i= not 2 guarantes that an andit
conducted mn accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Repubhe of China will always detect a2 matenal
musstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can anse from frand or evor and are consadered matenal if,
individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

As part of an andit 0 accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepncizm throughout the audit We also:

1. Identfy and assess the nsks of matenal pusstatement of the consohdated financial statements, whether duos
to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those naks, and obtamn audit evidence
that 1= sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opimon. The n=k of not deteching 2 matenal
misstatement resulfing from fraud 13 higher than for one resultmg from emror, as frand may mvolve collunon,
forgery, intentional omassions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of mternal control

Obtan an understanding of mnternal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropnate m the circomistances, but not for the porpose of expressmmg an opimon on the effectiveness of the
Group’s intermal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounfing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management

b

4. Conclode on the approprniateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounnng and. based
on the audit evidence obtamed, whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast ugnificant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 2 matenal
uncertamty exists, we are required to draw attenhon in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consohdated financial statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, to modify ouwr opimon. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors” report. However, future
evenis or condibons may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going conoern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consohidated financial statements, mncluding
the disclosures, and whether the consohdated financial statements represent the underlymg transactions and
events mn a manner that achieves faur presentation.

10



KPMG

43

6. Obtamn sufficient appropnate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entihes or busmmess
actities within the Group fo express an opimion on the consohdated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direchon, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remam solely responsible
for our andit opimon.

We commumicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
tuming of the audst and sigmaficant audst findings. meluding any ugnificant deficiencies in mternal control that

We also provide those charped with governance with a statement that we have comphed wath relevant ethacal

requirements regarding independence, and to commumcate with them all relattonships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence_ and where apphcable. related safepuards.

From the matters commumecated with those charged wath povernance. we determune those matters that were of
most ngmficance n the andit of the consolidated financial statements of the current penod and are therefore the
key audit matters. We descnbe these matters in our auditors” report unless law or regulahion precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we deteroune that a matter should not be
communicated m our report because the adverse consequences of downg s0 would reasonably be expected to
cutweigh the pubbe mierest benefits of such commumeation.

The engapement partners on the audit resultmg m this independent anditors’ report are Wei-Mmg Shih and
Huei-Chen Chang

EPM
Tamper. Tarwan (Republic of China)
March 17, 2023

Notes fo Beaders

The accompamving consolidated francial statements are intemded oaly to present the consolidmed francial position. fnamcial
performance and cash flows m accomiance with the accooniing prmciples and practices generally accepied m the Bepablic of China and
wof those of amy other jurisdictions. The sondards, procedurss and practices mo sudit such consolideed fnancia] statements are o
penerally accepied and applied in the Bepublic of Chuna

The independent sudinors” report and the sccompanying consobidaced Snancial vinsements are the English oanshtion of the Chiness
version prepared and used i the Bepublic of China If thers is any conflict beteresn, or any difference m the mferpretation of the Englich
and Chiress bepoage independers suditors” repart and consolidated financia] somements, the Chinese version shall prevail
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(Englich Tran:lation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021
{Expressed in Thousand: of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2021  December 31, 2021

Asseis Amonnt G Amonmt G
Current assefs:
1100 Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(a)) ¥ 1814795 48 1.054 280 3l
1110 Financis] assets 3t fair valee through prodt or loss — ourment
(note &(b)) 2,521 - 11,522 -
1138 Financis] assets ot amortized cost — cument (oves §(c), (d) and 8) 156,224 3 73,842 1
1150-1170  Motes and accounts receivable (notes 6{d) and (s)) 760,115 13 1208174 19
130X Invensories (notes G(e) and &) 918,989 15 1425782 3
1410-1470  Prepavments and other current assets 17,774 55773 1
Total current assets 4677418 i 4 720 183 15
Non-carrent assets:
1535 Financisl assets ot amomized cost — noa-current (mote S(c)) 06,041 1 107,038 |
1550 Investments accounted for using equity method (note 6(f)) 14748 - 17690 -
1600 Propesty, plant and equipment (notes &(1) and &) 1,016,813 17 1,067,096 17
1755 Fipght-of-we assets (norwe 800 44 600 1 58,683 1
1780 Intangible assets (mote G{k)) 203,103 3 268,899 4
1840 Deferred income tax assets (note 6(o)) 41,802 - 54,437 1
1915 Prepayvments for equipment 12,853 1560 -
1920 Refimdable deposits 1804 - 3575 -
Total non-current assets 1432754 _ 23 _ Lsssoss _ 25
Total assets $ 6110172 :ﬂ E!EH! &

Ses accompanying motes to consolidated financial statements.
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(Englizh Tramslation of Consolidated Financial Statements Onginally Issued mm Chinese)
FINTECH TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidared Balance Sheets (Continued)

December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed i Thowzands of New Tarwran Dollars)

December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021

Liabilities and Equity Amount oy Amount iy
Cuorrent habilities:
Shor-term borrowings (notes &(T) and &) 5 - 10334
Contract liabilities — current (note 6(s)) 56,723 1 48.079 1
Hotes and scoounis payable 355,515 & TE5 556 12
Orther pavables (note &(1)) 175,952 4 316,113 5
Corrent income tax lisbalifies 12716 4 208 a4 3
Provisions — current (note 6(n)) 34 4461 1 39w 1
Lease lisbilities — cumrent (oot S{m)) 12,580 - 18.317 -
Other current liabilities 45122 1 40605 1
Tetal corrent liabilities 053 0de __17 LA4l 04T __23
Nop-current labilities:
Deferred income tax lisbilities (note 6{p)) 4,642 - 40 634 1
Met defined benefit Labilities (note 8(0)) 15,317 35,753 -
Lease lishilities — non-curment (note 6(m)) 33313 1 0602 1
Total pen-current habilities —ll ) ——— PR ol
Total hiabilities —L10634l __ 18 _ 1577036 25
Equity (notes 6(g), (h) and (g)):
Commeon stock 1,430,623 4 1,430,423 23
Capital surpins 536,947 ] 528355 8
Fetained earings:
Legal reserve 1,194,570 20 1,128,264 18
Special reserve 13473 1 57.939 1
Unappropriated earnings 1,741,308 18 1,360,507 21
Orther equity (49.411) _ () 73479 _ (D
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 4929510 Bl 4432215 70
MNea-conmolling interests (note S(H)) 74321 1 30920 5
Total equity 5003831 82 _ 4.741.135 75

See accompanyving notes to consobdated financial statements.
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(Englizh Tran:lation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issoed in Chinese)
FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the vears ended December 31, 20212 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Tatwan Dollars . Except for Earnings Per Share)

Bevenne (mote 6z))
Cost of revenne (motes &(e), (i), (j), ), (m), (n), (o), (f) and 12)
Gross profit

Operating expenses (notes &(d), (h), (1), (), (k). Q). (=), (o), (t) and 17):

Selling expanses
Administrative sxpenses
Besearch and development expensss
Total operatimz expemses
Operating income
MNop-operating income and loss (notes §(f), (h), (m) and (w)):
Interast incomms
Orther income
(Orthar zzins and losses
Finance costs
Share of losses of associates accounted for using equity method
Total non-operating income and loss
Income before income tax
Less: Incoms tax expensas (note S(p))
Net income
Other comprehensive imcome (loss) (mote G(q)):
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Fiemeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified subsequendy
to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on franslation of foreizn operatons

Income tax related to itemes that may be reclaszified subsequenty
to profit or loss

Oither comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the vear
Net imcome attributable to:
Shareholdars of the Company
Mon-coniolling interests

Total comprehensive income atiributable fo:
Shareholdars of the Compamy
Mon-conmolling interests

Earnimzs per share {im New Taiwan dollars) (mote G(r)):
Basic earnings per shars
Diluted earmings per shara

See accompanyving notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
Amoont 04 Amount 34
§ 5544225 100 5185155 100

(3561484} (64) (3.481.701) (&6T)
1982741 36 L703454 33
(380.066) (70 (3805100 (B)
2L47 @ (240685 (D
(2745500 _ (5) _ (351.488) _ (%)
{876.063) (16 (281683} (17)
1106678 20 821761 _ 14

11,358 - 6305 -
7572 - 14000 -
87,487 2 a7eos -
(1L,115) - (1,665 -
{4365 - Gln -
100,937 2 411 -

1207615 22 822182 16
(1874137 _ (%) _ (131.008) _ (3)
10202402 18 01086 13

1448 - 5283 -

(28 _ - (1,283 -

1158 - 3004 -

13,583 1 (19,162 -
23.583 1 {19.167) -

24 742 1 {15.168) -

§ 1044044 10 675018 13
5 1.043.153 18 683,064 13
(22951} _ - 8022 _ -

$_ 1020202 1% 601 086 13
$ 1066608 19 667,530 13
2L754) - 8388 _ -
§_lodd044 1o 675018 _ 11
b3 1.19 4.77
3 1.2 4.74



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Equity atiributable to shareholders of the Company

Retained earnings Total other equity interest
Foreign Total
currency Remeasurements equity of MNon-
Common Capital Legal Special Unappropriated translation of defined the controlling  Total
stock surplus reserve reserve earnings Total differences  henefit plans Total Company  infterests equity

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 1430623 597122 1,069,391 40 402 1245571 2364364 (50.,942) (6.997) (57.939) 4334170 274865 4600035
Appropriation of earnings:

Legal reserve - - 58.873 - (58.873) - - - - - - -

Special reserve - - - 8,537 (8.537) - - - - - - -

Cash dividends - - - - (500.718)  (500.718) - - - (500,718) - (500,718)
Cash dividends from capital surplus - (71,531) - - - - - - - (71,531) - (71,531)
Changes in ownership inferests in subsidiaries - 2764 - - - - - - - 2764 (2.764) -
Changes in non-confrolling inferests - - - - - - - - - - 44 400 44 400
Distribution of cash dividends by subsidiaries

to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (15,969) (15,969)
Net income 1n 2021 - - - - 683.004 683.064 - - - 683.064 8,022 691,086
Other comprehensive income (loss) in 2021 - - - - - - (17.974) 2440 _ (15534 (15.534) 366 (15.168)
Total comprehensive income (loss) i 2021 - - - - 683.064 683.064 (17.974) 2440 (15.534) _ 667.530 8,388 675,918
Balance at December 31, 2021 1430623 528355 1128264 57,939 1360507  2.546,710 (68.916) (4.557) (73473) 4432215 308920 4741135
Appropriation of earnings:

Legal reserve - - 68,3006 - (68,306) - - - - - - -

Special reserve - - - 15,534 (15.534) - - - - - - -

Cash dividends - - - - (572.249)  (572.249) - - - (572,249) - (572.249)
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries - (3.746) - - (6.263) (6.263) - - - (10,009 10,000 -
Share of changes in equity of associates - 12,338 - - - - - - - 12,338 - 12,338
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - 517 - 517 517 (285834  (285.337)
Changes in non-confrolling interests - - - - - - - - - - 63,000 63,000
Net income (loss) i 2022 - - - - 1043153 1,043,153 - - - 1.043.153  (22,951) 1,020,202
Other comprehensive income in 2022 - - - - - - 22386 1.150 23.545 23.545 1.197 24742
Total comprehensive income (loss) in 2022 - - - - 1.043.153 1.043 153 22 386 1,159 23545 _1066698 _ (21.754) _1.044044
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 1430623 _ 536.947 _1.196.570 73473 1.741.308 _ 3.011.351 (46.013) (3.398) _ (49.411) _4.929.510 74321 _5.003.831

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

or the years ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan

_ Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income tax

 Adjustments for:
-ld-:- gt arids b vasrsnsila e fEmE lacoey
et jl.l'?ll-ll!.‘lll’ (At e Rijileils lJI WFLEL LEUS3 )
Depreciation
Amortization

(Reversal of) expected credit loss
— Share of loss of associates accounted for using equity method
Loss (gain) on disposal of propety, plant and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment reclassified to expenses
- Imterest expense
Interest ncome
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
‘Impairment loss on investments accounted for using equity method

non-cash profit and loss
Changes in operating assefs and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:

Financial assets mandatonly measured at fair value through profit or loss

Notfes and accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepayments and other current assets

Changes in operating liabilities:
Financial liabilities held for trading
Contract liabilities
Notes and accounts payable
Other payables
Provisions — current
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities
Net changes in operating liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Cash provided by operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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d 2021
ars) _
2022 2021
1.207.615 822182
86,691 114,740
42 872 44 256
708 (9,617)
4 365 310
(416) 1,278
1,115 1,665
{11.358) (6,305)
438 -
(22,042) -
10915 -
113288 145327
2.001 691
333,050 (617.280)
162,010 (770,989)
(1.893) (28.940)
495 168 {(1416.518)
- (882)
8,644 (12,867)
(268.337) 500,776
(9.,062) 71,665
3,268 1,911
9.679 20,081
(1.107) (2.425)
(256 915) 578.259
238.253 (838.259)
1,559,156 130,250
(161.462) (122,585)
1.397.694 7.665
(Continued)



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at amortized cost
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method
Proceeds from disposal of subsidianes
Additions to property, plant and equipment (including prepayments
for equipment)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Additfions of intangible assets
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits
Interest received
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase mn short-term borrowings
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Payment of lease Liabilities
Cash drvidends distributed to shareholders
Distribution of cash dividend by subsidiaries to non-controlling interests
Capital injection from non-controlling interests
Interest paid
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notfes to consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
(69.167) 72,629
- (18,000)
92,613 -
(53,242) (53,869)
615 2,124
(4.417) (12,314)
(328) 104
8.136 3.692
(25.790) (5.634)
- 25,000
(10,066) (21,651)
(12,214) (28.636)
(572.249) (572,249)
- (15,969)
63,000 44,400
(1.115) (1.665)
(532 644) (570.770)
21245 (17.050)
860,505 (585,789)
1.954.290 2.540.079
S__ 2814795 1,954,290
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Independent Auditors’ Report
- To the Board of Directors

Flytech Technology Co._, Ltd.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements of Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

 (the “Company™), which comprise the accompanying parent-company-only balance sheets as of December 31,

2022 and 2021, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years
then ended, and notes to the parent-company-only financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opmnion, the accompanying parent-company-only financial statements present fairly, in all matenal
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial
performance and 1ts cash flows for the years then ended mn accordance with the Regulations Goverming the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

+ Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Aftestation of Financial

Statements by Cerfified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Fmancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The Norm

- of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requurements. We believe that the audit evidence we have

" obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis of our opinion.

' Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 1n our audit of
the parent-company-only financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of parent-company-only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

~we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the Company’s parent-company-only financial statements for the year ended December

’ 31, 2022 are stated as follows:

" 1. Revenue recognition

Refer to Note 4(n) for accounting policy on revenue recognition and Note 6(o) for related disclosures of the
notes to the parent-company-only financial statements.

KPMG, 3 Tanan parinesship and 3 member fmm of the KPMWG giobal organizaiion of iIndepandant membar fims afilted with KPMG Intemational Limited, 3 private: English company Bmited by guaramies.
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Revenue 1s recogmzed depending on the varous trade terms agreed with customers. This exposes the
Company to the nisk that the sales transactions made close to the balance sheet date are not recorded in the
appropriate period. Consequently, the revenue recogmition has been identified as one of the key audit
matters.

How the matter was addressed in our andit:

In relation to the key audit matter above, our principal audit procedures included testing the design and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting on sales; assessing
whether revenue 15 recognized based on the trade terms with customers through reviewing the related sales
contracts or other trade documents; performing a sumple test on the sales transactions that took place before
and after the balance sheet date, as well as reviewing and understanding the reasonableness for any identified
sigmificant sales returns and allowances that took place after the balance sheet date to ensure that revenue
was recognized in the appropniate period.

2. Impairment of goodwill ncluded in investments in subsidiaries accounted for using equity method

Refer to Note 4(1) for accounting policy on impairment of non-financial assets, Note 5(b) for uncertainty of
accounfing estumates and assumptions for goodwill impairment, and Note 6(f) for related disclosures of the
notes to the parent-company-only financial ststements.

Descniption of kev audit matter:

Goodwill ansing from busmness combinations 15 annually subject to impairment test or when there are
mdications that goodwill may have been impaired. The assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill
mvolves management’s judgment and estimation. Accordingly, the assessment of impairment of goodwill has
been identified as one of the key audit matters.

In relation to the key audit matter above, our principal audit procedures mncluded obtaining the assessment of
goodwill impairment provided by the management; assessing the appropriateness of the valuation model and
key assumptions, including the discount rate, expected sales growth rate and future cash flow projections,
used by the management in measuring the recoverable amount; and assessing the adequacy of disclosures of
related information on evaluation of goodwill.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent-Company-Only
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent-company-only financial
statements in accordance with Regulations Goverming the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and for such internal control as management determines 15 necessary to enable the preparation of parent-
company-only financial statements that are free from matenal musstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent-company-only financial statements, management i1s responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gomng concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either mntends to hquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no reahistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Commuittee) are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent-company-only financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a matenal
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if
mndividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these parent-company-only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assesse the risks of material nusstatement of the parent-company-only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opmion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, nusrepresentations, or the override of mnternal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s infernal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtamed, whether a material uncertamnty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a gomg concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
parent-company-only financial statements or, 1f such disclosures are madequate, to modify our opimion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors” report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a gomg concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent-company-only financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the parent-company-only financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in other
entities accounted for using equity method to express an opinion on the parent-company-only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opimon.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, mncluding any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we 1dentify during our audit.
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Weﬂsnprmudeﬁmchugedmthgmm with a statement that we have :nnmhedmthrek‘iwmcal
requrements regarding mdependence, and to comnmmicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Fmthmnmmﬂamdﬁﬁﬂmsechugﬂwiﬁgmmmmd&umﬂm&emmﬂwm of
sigﬁﬁcmmmeaﬂtnfﬂrpturw-mlyﬁnniﬂmdm:mmmdm

ea il dlea leaws meedidh ccambdacs TIfa dacacihe flhace ccmdbace (o saee =acdos e mek e lmes lmese me com i
LTI TILIE W I-E:f' Al Oiaters. we UESCIDE (0ESE mianers i Oid II-II-U-'I:I I.EI.H-‘I.I LATSS aw V1 ITEUauVLL

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circomstances, we deternune that a
matter should not be commmunicated m our report becanse the adverse comsequences of domng so would
reasonably be expecied to outweigh the public mterest benefits of such commmmication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting m this mdependent anditors’ report are Wei-Ming Shih and
Hue:-Chen Chang

KPMG

Taspei, Tarwan (Republic of Chuna)
March 17, 2023

Note: to Readers

The accompanying parent-Company-only financial statements are intended only to present the fnsncial position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepied in the Republic of China and not those of
any other junsdictons. The standards, procedures and practices to mudit such parent-compamy-only financial statements are those
generally sccepted and applied m the Repuoblic of China

The independent amditors” report and the accompanying parent-company-only financisl sistements are the English tramslation of the
Chiness version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between. or any difference in the interpretation of the
English snd Chinese lan=magre mdependent awditors’ report snd parent-compsny-only finsncizl s@tements, the Chiness version shall
prevail
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(English Transladon of Parent-Company-Ouly Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Parent-Company-Only Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021
Astets Amount L Amount ]
Current assets: ' o o
1100 Cash and cask equvalents (note 6(a)) $ 2154463 37 1,384.278 25
1110 Fmancial assets at fair value throngh profit or loss —cument
{(note 6(b)) 9,521 - 11,522 -
1136 Finanecial assets at amortized cost — cwrent (notes 6(c) and §) 2,002 - 10,717 -
1150-1170  Notes and accounts receivable (notes 6(d) and (o)) 644 459 11 940,985 17
1180 Accounts recervable from related parties (notes 8(d), (o) and 7) 82477 160,101 3
1210 Other recervables from related partes (note 6(c)) 1,954 - - -
130X Inventonies (note 6(e)) 773,708 13 925,724 17
1410-1470  Prepayments and other current assets 3,603 = 21282 -
Total current assets 3672189 _ 63 __ 3454609 _ 62
Non-current azsets:
1550 Investment: accounted for using equity method (note 6(£)) 1,132,353 19 1.043.115 19
1600 Property, plant and equipment (note 6(g)) 974 466 17 1,006,005 18
1755 Right-of-use assets (note 6(h)) 2.764 - 520 -
1780 Intangible assets 12,351 - 10,970 -
1840 Deferred mcome tax assets (note 6(1)) 19,971 34,239 1
1915 Prepayments for equipment 12,854 - 1,293 -
1920 Refindable depomits 285 _ - 285 -
Total non-current assets 2175044 37 2096429 33
Total assets § 2847231 100 _ 2551038 100

See accompanying notes io pareni-company-only financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent-Company-Ouly Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinesze)
FINTECH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Parent-Company-Only Balance Sheets (Continued)

{(Expressed in Thous

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Liahilities and E guiry Amount % Amoumnt ]
Currewt liabilities:
2130 Comtract liabilibes —cument (note 5{c)) 5 53,343 1 - -
2150-2170  Motes and accounts payzble 315,314 [ 612958 11
2180 Accounts payable to related partes (note 7) 388 - 4,198 -
7700 Other pavables (note 6(p)) 238537 4 224 857 4
2230 Currept meome tax hababhes 281 12 . 3. D372 -
2750 Provisions — current (note 6(;)) 13320 - 532 .
2280 Lease habilihes — current (note 6(1)) 1,095 - 22,080 -
2300 Other current hiabilibes 16,878 = = =
Total current liabilities 900,209 16 1.064.977 19
Non-current liabilities:
2570 Deferred income tax Liabilines (note 6({1}) 520 - 35,950 1
2640 Net defined benefit habilities (note 6(k)) 15,317 . 17,896 -
2580 Lease habiliies — non-current ({note §(1)) 1677 - - -
Tetal non-carrent iabilitie: 17.514 - 53 846 1
Total liabilities 917,723 16 1118823 _ 20
Equiry (motes 6(k), (1) and (m)):
ill0 Commeon stock 1,430,623 24 1,430,623 26
3200 Capatal surplus 536,947 ) 528,355 10
Fetained eamings:
3310 Legal reserve 1,196,570 21 1,128,264 20
3320 Special reserve T3 4T3 1 37939 1
3350 Unappropnated earmungs 1,741,308 30 1,360,507 24
3400 Oiher equity (45411 (b (73.473) (1)
Total equity —4200510 __ 84 _ 4432215 _ 80
Total liabilities and equity 5 ilﬂ-'riiii ﬂ fﬁiﬂlgﬁ ﬂ

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.

23



(English Tran:laton of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Iszued in Chinese)
FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD.

Parent-Company-Only Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Share)

4000 Eevenue (notes 6(o) and 7)
5000 Cosi of revenue inoies G{ej, (g), {i), (i), k), ip), 7 and 12j
Crosz profit before unrealized gross profit
5910 Less: Realized (unrealized) gross profit on sales
CGrom profit
Operating expenses (motes 6(d), (g), (h), (1), (k), (p), 7 and 12):
6100 Selling expenses

6200 - Admimisirative expenses
6300 Research and development expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nop-operating income and lows (notes 6(0), (i) and (g)):
7100 Interest income
TOL0 {ther mcome
7020 Other gains and losses
7050 Finance costs
73735 Share of profits (losses) of subsidiaries accounted for usng
equity method

Total non-operating income and lozs
Iscome before income tax
7930 Less: Income tax expense (note 6(1))
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
8310 Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

8311 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

8330 - Share of remeasurements of defived benefit plans of subsidianies
accounted for using equity method

E345 Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

B360 Items thar may be reclassified subregquently fo profit or lois

836l Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
g399 Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earming: per share (im New Taiwan dollars) (nore 6(n))
9730 Basic earmmgs per share
9850 Dhluted eamings per share

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.
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Amouni b | Amouni b )
§ 4827119 100 3,846939 100
i3.138. 287y _{635) _{2.608.184) _(68)
1.688.832 35 3B 755 32
20.814 - (42.871) (1)
—L709646 _ 35 __ 1195884 _ 31
(175940) (4) (128538) (&)
oo {ITALTIEY (30 (LiBsEE (3
{181.473) (4) (169.227y (4
(3311297 (11) (416713 (11)
1.178.517 24 779171 20
6,060 - 2 966 -
6. 403 - £ 357 -
73.465 2 33 -
23 - {an -
(40443 (1) 12 961 1
45.462 1 18,495 1
<1223 979 - 25 TOTE55 21
flEDiSZEI {3) | 114 602 !_’-]
1.043.153 22 683,064 18
1448 - 1.15% -
- - 1.513 -
89y - 23 -
1.159 - 2 440 -
22386 - (17979 (D
’-"i"'iiEEﬁ - {'ITIEI'TJH (1)
23545 - {15.538) (1)
5 1 698 33 &67.230 17
5 T.29 4.77
5 T30 4.74



Balance at January 1, 2021
Appropriation of earnings:

Legal reserve

Special reserve

Cash dividends
Cash dividends from capital surphos
Changes in ownership interest in subsidianes
Net income in 2021
Other comprehensive income (loss) m 2021
Total comprehensive income (loss) in 2021
Balance at December 31, 2021
Appropriation of earmings:

Legal reserve

Special reserve

Cash dividends
Dnsposal of subsidiaries
Changes in ownership mnterest in subsidianes
Share of changes in equity of associates
Net income 1n 2022
Other comprehensive income in 2022
Total comprehensive ncome 1n 2022
Balance at December 31, 2012

(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

FIYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD.

Parent-Companyv-Only Statements of Changes in Equity
For the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Retained earnings Total other equity interest
Foreign
cuwrrency  Remeasurements
Common Capital Legal Special  Unappropriated iranslation of defined Total
stock surplus reserve reserve earnings Total differences  benefit plans Total equity

$ 1430623 597,122 1,069,391 49 402 1,245,571 2364364 (50.942) (6,997) (57.939) 4334170

- 58,873 - (58,873) - -

- - 8,537 (8,337) - - - - -
- - - - (500.718) (500.718) - - - (500,718)
- (71,531) - - - - - - - (71,531)
- 2764 - - - - - - - 2.764
- - - - 683,064 683.064 - - - 683,064
- - - - - (17.974) 2,440 (15.534) (15.534)
- - - - 683,064 683.064 (17.974) 2440 (15.534) 667,530
1,430,623 528,355  1,128.264 57,939 1,360,507 2,546,710 (68.916) (4,557) (73.473) 4432215

- - 68.306 - (68.306) - - - - -

- - - 15.534 (15.534) - - - - -
- - - - (572.249) (572.249) - - - (572,249)
- - - - - - 517 - 517 517
- (3,746) - - (6.263) (6.263) - - - (10,009)
- 12,338 - - - - - - 12,338
- - 1,043,153 1,043,153 - 1,043,153
- - - - 2286 L1>9 ll.ﬂi —_—d
L043.153 1043153 22386 L1359 23545 __ 1.066.698

EM_E&LM_MM_LM_M_{E@_HE&DM

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements
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(English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD.

Parent-Company-Only Statements of Cash Flows
For the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income tax 1.223.979 797.666
Adjustments for:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation 64,312 74,767
Amortization 3,443 1,962
Gain on reversal of impairment loss - (8.299)
Share of loss (profit) of subsidiaries accounted for using equity method 40,443 (12,961)
Loss (gaimn) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (199) 281
Interest expense 23 17
Interest income (6.060) (2.966)
Unrealized (realized) gross profit on sales to subsidiaries (20.814) 42 871
Total non-cash profit and loss 81.148 95.672
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,001 691
Notes and accounts receivable 296,526 (494 .424)
Accounts receivable from related parties 75,670 (17,148)
Inventories 152,016 (539,164)
Prepayments and other current assets 17.677 (11.934)
Net changes in operating assets 543.890 (1.061.979)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Financial habilities held for trading - (444)
Notes and accounts payable (297,644) 414,491
Accounts payable to related parties (3,610) 359
Other payables 13,680 38,561
Provisions — current 2,947 1,673
Other current liabilities 48,147 793
Net defined benefit iabilities (1.131) (22)
Net changes in operating liabilities (237.611) 455411
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities 306,279 (606.568)
Cash provided by operations 1,611,406 286,770
Income taxes paid (151.128) (115.376)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1.460.278 171,394
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.
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{English Translation of Parent-Company-Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

FLYTECH TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD.
Parent-Company-Only Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2021
Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at amortized cost 8,713 (10,319)
Acqusition of investments accounted for using equity method (83.634) -
Additions to property, plant and equipment (including prepayments
for equipment) (44,133) (34,084)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 272 1,647
Additions of intangible assets (4,024) (11,659)
Interest received 6.062 2.966
Net cash flows used in investing activities (116.744) (51.449)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of lease liabilities (1,077) (1,049)
Cash dividends distributed to shareholders (572.249) (572,249)
Interest paid (23) (17)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (573.349) (573.315)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 770,185 (453,370)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 1.384 278 1837 648
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear ) 2.154.463 1,.384.278

See accompanying notes to parent-company-only financial statements.
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Appendix 4

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Statement of earnings distribution in 2022

Unit: NT$
Amount
Item
Subtotal Total
Opening undistributed earnings $ 704,416,814
Add: 2022 after-tax net profit 1,043,152,925
Add: Reversel of sperial reserve 24,037,659
Less: Adjustment due to change of investee's
equity ( 6,262,545)

Less: 10% as legal reserve (104.315.293)
Distributable earnings $ 1,661,029,560
Distribution

Cash dividends for shareholders (NT$ 5.5/share) 786,842,782
Total of amount paid 786,842,782
Closing undistributed earnings $ 874,186,778

Chairman: Lam Tai Seng = Manager: Chuo Chun Hung Accountant in charge: Wu Pi Tao
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Appendix 5

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Company Corporate Charter” before and after
amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

Article 11

Chapter 3 Shareholders Meetings
The Shareholders’ Meeting

convenes in regular sessions and
special sessions. Regular sessions
will be held within 6 months after
the end of the fiscal year. Special
sessions will be called for under

law where necessary.

Chapter 3 Shareholders Meetings
The Shareholders’ Meeting
convenes in regular sessions and
special sessions. Regular sessions
will be held within 6 months after
the end of the fiscal year. Special
sessions will be called for under
law where necessary.

The Company’s shareholders’
meetings can be held by means of
visual communication network or
other methods promulgated by the
central competent authority. When
the shareholders meeting is held, if
the meeting is held by video
conference, the shareholders who
participate in the meeting through
video conference are deemed to be
present in person.

The regulations in the preceding two

paragraphs, the conditions,
operating procedures, and other

matters to be complied with by
companies that issue shares to the
public, if otherwise stipulated by the

competent securities authority, shall

prevail.

In preparation
for holding a
video
conference of
shareholders in
the future,
relevant
provisions will
be added.

Article 25

The Company Corporate Charter
(Articles of Incorporation) was
established on July 6, 1984.
(Omitted)...

The 21th amendment was
implemented on June 8, 2016.
The 22th amendment was
implemented on June 8, 2017.
The 23th amendment was
implemented on June 8, 2018.
The 24th amendment was
implemented on June 10, 2020.
The 25th amendment was
implemented on July 7, 2021.

The Company Corporate Charter
(Articles of Incorporation) was
established on July 6, 1984.
(Omitted)...

The 21th amendment was
implemented on June 8, 2016.
The 22th amendment was
implemented on June 8, 2017.
The 23th amendment was
implemented on June 8, 2018.
The 24th amendment was
implemented on June 10, 2020.
The 25th amendment was
implemented on July 7, 2021.
The 26th amendment was
implemented on June 9, 2023.

Date of
amendment

29




Appendix 6

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 3 | 1.The Board shall call for the | 1.The Board shall call for the session unless | Cooperate with
session unless otherwise otherwise specified in other applicable the public
specified in other applicable | laws. version to
laws. Changes to how this Corporation convenes | update

2.The Company shall have
the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders notice, proxy
and the proposal and
information on admission,
discussions and directors
election and dismissal
compiled into electronic
files and uploaded to the
MOPS 30 days prior to the
annual meeting of
shareholders or 15 days
prior to the extraordinary
meeting of shareholders.
Also, the Annual Meeting
Handbook and the
supplementary information
are compiled into electronic
files and uploaded to the
MOPS 21 days prior to the
Annual Meeting of
Shareholders or 15 days
prior to the extraordinary
meeting of shareholders.
The Annual Meeting
Handbooks and the
supplementary information
are made available to
shareholders 15 days prior
to the annual meeting of
shareholders; also, on
display at the Company’s
and its Stock Agent’s and
distributed to
shareholders at the

meeting place.

3~9 Omitted

its shareholders meeting shall be resolved
by the board of directors, and shall be
made no later than mailing of the
shareholders meeting notice.

The company shall hold a videoconference
of the shareholders meeting, unless
otherwise stipulated in the stock affairs
handling guidelines of public offering
companies, it shall be specified in the
articles of association, and shall be resolved
by the board of directors. The resolution of
the board of directors shall be passed, and
the video conference shareholders meeting
shall be implemented by the resolution of
the board of directors with the attendance
of more than two-thirds of the directors and

the consent of more than half of the
directors.

2.The Company shall have the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders notice, proxy and
the proposal and information on
admission, discussions and directors
election and dismissal compiled into
electronic files and uploaded to the MOPS
30 days prior to the annual meeting of
shareholders or 15 days prior to the
extraordinary meeting of shareholders.
If, however, this Corporation has the
paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or more
as of the last day of the most current
fiscal vear, or total shareholding of
foreign shareholders and PRC
shareholders reaches 30 % or more as
recorded in the register of shareholders
of the shareholders meeting held in the
immediately preceding vear,
transmission of these electronic files
shall be made by 30 days before the
regular shareholders meeting.

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (ontinued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

In addition, before 15 days before the date
of the shareholders meeting, this
Corporation shall also have prepared the
shareholders meeting agenda and
supplemental meeting materials and made
them available for review by shareholders
at any time. The meeting agenda and
supplemental materials shall also be
displayed at this Corporation and the
professional shareholder services agent
designated thereby.

This Corporate shall make the meeting
agenda and supplemental meeting
materials in the preceding paragraph
available to shareholders for review in
the following manner on the date of the

shareholders meeting:
(1) For physical shareholders meetings,
to be distributed on-site at the

meeting.
(2) For hybrid shareholders meetings, to

be distributed on-site at the meeting
and shared on the virtual meeting
platform.

(3) For virtual-only shareholders
meetings, electronic files shall be
shared on the virtual meeting

platform.

3~9 Omitted
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 4 | Shareholders may use the Shareholders may use the power of attorney

power of attorney prepared prepared by the Company to appoint a proxy

by the Company to appoint a | to attend each session of the Shareholders

proxy to attend each session | Assembly by specifying the scope of

of the Shareholders Assembly | authorization.

by specifying the scope of 1~2 Omitted.

authorization.

1~2 Omitted. 3 If, after a proxy form is delivered to this Cooperate with

Corporation, a shareholder wishes to the public

3 If a power of attorney was attend the shareholders meeting online, a | version to
delivered to the Company written notice of proxy cancellation shall update
and the shareholder be submitted to this Corporation two
concerned desires to attend business days before the meeting date. If
the session, such the cancellation notice is submitted after
shareholder shall notify the that time, votes cast at the meeting by the
Company in writing to proxy shall prevail.
revoke the power of
attorney previously
undertaken no later than 2
days before the session of
the Shareholders’ Meeting,
or it shall be deemed the
presence and the vote of the
shareholder in the session is
represented by proxy.

Article 5 | The principle of choosing the | The principle of choosing the place and time

place and time for the
sessions of the Shareholders’
Meeting.

The shareholders meeting
must be held at a location that
is suitable and convenient for
shareholders to attend. The
meeting must not commence
anytime earlier than 9AM or
later than 3PM. Independent
Directors' opinions must be
fully taken into consideration
when deciding the time and
venue of the meeting.

for the sessions of the Shareholders’
Meeting.

1 The shareholders meeting must be held at
a location that is suitable and convenient
for shareholders to attend. The meeting
must not commence anytime earlier than
9AM or later than 3PM. Independent
Directors' opinions must be fully taken
into consideration when deciding the time
and venue of the meeting.

2 The restrictions on the place of the
meeting shall not apply when this
Corporation convenes a virtual-only
shareholders meeting.

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

Article 6 | Preparation of sign-in registry

and related documents

1 The Company shall prepare a
sign-in registry for the
shareholders and the proxies
(hereinafter collectively
known as “shareholders”) to
sign-in for attendance, or, the
shareholders who are present
shall surrender their sign-in
card in lieu of sign-in.

2 The Company shall have the
Agenda Handbook, annual
reports, attendance card,
statement slip, ballots, and
other meeting materials
delivered to the shareholders
presented; also, the ballot will
be distributed to the directors
for the election of directors, if
any.

3 Shareholders shall attend the
session of the Shareholders’
Meeting with the attendance
card, sign-in card, or other
certification documents.
Proxies shall present the
power of attorney of their
principals and their personal
identification document for
confirmation.

4 Where the shareholders may
be government entities or
institutions, the number of
representatives to the session
may be more than 1 person.
The number of legal person
entrusted to attend the
shareholders’ meeting is
limited to 1 person.

Preparation of sign-in registry and related
documents
1 The Company shall specify in its

shareholders meeting notices the time
during which attendance registrations for
shareholders, solicitors and proxies
(collectively ''shareholders'') will be
accepted, the place to register for
attendance, and other matters for attention.

2 The time during which shareholder

attendance registrations will be accepted, as

stated in the preceding paragraph, shall be
at least 30 minutes prior to the time the
meeting commences. The place at which
attendance registrations are accepted shall
be clearly marked and a sufficient number
of suitable personnel assigned to handle the
registrations. For virtual shareholders
meetings, shareholders may begin to
register on the virtual meeting platform 30
minutes before the meeting starts.
Shareholders completing registration will
be deemed as attend the shareholders
meeting in person.

3 Shareholders shall attend shareholders

meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in
cards, or other certificates of attendance. This
Corporation may not arbitrarily add
requirements for other documents beyond
those showing eligibility to attend presented

by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy
forms shall also bring identification
documents for verification.

4 This Corporation shall furnish the

attending shareholders with an attendance
book to sign, or attending shareholders may

hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.

Cooperate with
the public
version, the
first item is
updated, and
the original
first item is
moved to the
fourth item
Cooperate with
the public
version, the
second item is
updated, and
the original
second item is
moved to the
fifth item

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

The original
fourth item is
moved to the
sixth item

The original
first item
moved to the
fourth item
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
5 This Corporation shall furnish attending The original
shareholders with the meeting agenda book, | first item
annual report, attendance card, speaker's moved to the
slips, voting slips, and other meeting fifth item
materials. Where there is an election of
directors or supervisors, pre-printed ballots
shall also be furnished.
6 When the government or a juristic person is | The original

a shareholder, it may be represented by
more than one representative at a
shareholders meeting. When a juristic
person is appointed to attend as proxy, it
may designate only one person to represent
it in the meeting.

7 In the event of a virtual shareholders
meeting, shareholders wishing to attend the
meeting online shall register with this
Corporation two days before the meeting
date.

8 In the event of a virtual shareholders
meeting, this Corporation shall upload the
meeting agenda book, annual report and
other meeting materials to the virtual
meeting platform at least 30 minutes before
the meeting starts, and keep this
information disclosed until the end of the
meeting.

fourth item is
moved to the
sixth item

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment ;?Ieersl(c)lIrlni(;lrt
Article Convening virtual shareholders meetings and_ | Cooperate with
6-1 particulars to be included in shareholders the public
meeting notice version to
To convene a virtual shareholders meeting, update

this Corporation shall include the follow

particulars in the shareholders meeting

notice:
1 How shareholders attend the virtual
meeting and exercise their rights.

2 Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting
platform or participation in the virtual
meeting is obstructed due to natural
disasters, accidents or other force majeure
events, at least covering the following
particulars:

(1) To what time the meeting is postponed

or from what time the meeting will

resume if the above obstruction

continues and cannot be removed, and

the date to which the meeting is

postponed or on which the meeting will

resume.

(2) Shareholders not having registered to

attend the affected virtual shareholders

meeting shall not attend the postponed

or resumed session.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

(3) In case of a hybrid shareholders

meeting, when the virtual meeting

cannot be continued, if the total

number of shares represented at the

meeting, after deducting those

represented by shareholders attending

the virtual shareholders meeting

online, meets the minimum legal

requirement for a shareholder meeting,

then the shareholders meeting shall

continue. The shares represented by

shareholders attending the virtual

meeting online shall be counted

towards the total number of shares

represented by shareholders present at

the meeting, and the shareholders

attending the virtual meeting online

shall be deemed abstaining from voting

on all proposals on meeting agenda of

that shareholders meeting.

(4) Actions to be taken if the outcome of all

proposals have been announced and

extraordinary motion has not been

carried out.

3 To convene a virtual-only shareholders

meeting, appropriate alternative measures

available to shareholders with difficulties in

attending a virtual shareholders meeting

online shall be specified.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 8 | The session shall be tracked The session shall be tracked by voice Cooperate with
by voice recording or recording or videotaping. the public
videotaping. version to
1 This Corporation, beginning from the update
The Company should have time it accepts shareholder attendance

the entire meeting of
shareholders taped in audio or
video recording and stored
for at least one year.
However, if a shareholder
makes a litigious claim
against The Company
according to Article 189 of
The Company Act, the above
mentioned documents must
be retained until the end of
the litigation.

registrations, shall make an
uninterrupted audio and video
recording of the registration procedure,
the proceedings of the shareholders
meeting, and the voting and vote
counting procedures.

2 The recorded materials of the preceding

paragraph shall be retained for at least
one vear. If, however, a shareholder files

a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the
Company Act, the recording shall be
retained until the conclusion of the

litigation.

3 Where a shareholders meeting is held
online, this Corporation shall keep
records of shareholder registration,
sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes

cast and results of votes counted by this
Corporation, and continuously audio
and video record, without interruption,
the proceedings of the virtual meeting
from beginning to end.

4 The information and audio and video
recording in the preceding paragraph
shall be properly kept by this
Corporation during the entirety of its
existence, and copies of the audio and
video recording shall be provided to and

kept by the party appointed to handle
matters of the virtual meeting.

5 In_case of a virtual shareholders
meeting, this Corporation is advised to
audio and video record the back-end
operation interface of the virtual
meeting platform.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 9 | The attendance to the session | Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be Cooperate with
of the Shareholders’ Meeting | calculated based on numbers of shares. The the public
shall be based on the quantity | number of shares in attendance shall be version to
of outstanding shares being calculated according to the shares indicated by update

represented. The number of
shares represented during the
meeting is calculated based on
the amount registered in the
attendance log or the
attendance cards collected,
plus the amount of shares
whose voting rights are
exercised through proxy
forms or electronic methods.

1 The Chairman shall
announce the
commencement of the
session when the time has
come, at the same time,
relevant information such as
the number of non-voting
rights and the number of
shares present will be
announced. If the
shareholders present in the
meeting represent less than
half of the outstanding
shares, the Chairman shall
announce the postponement
of the meeting, but the time
for postponement shall not
be longer than one hour,
and only two instances for 4
post-ponement are allowed.
The Chairman may
announce the meeting is
adjourned if there remain
insufficient shareholders
who represent 1/3 of
shareholding to attend the
meeting after two meetings
postponed.

the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in,
and the shares checked in on the virtual
meeting platform, plus the number of shares
whose voting rights are exercised by
correspondence or electronically.

1 The Chairman shall announce the
commencement of the session when the
time has come, at the same time, relevant
information such as the number of
non-voting rights and the number of shares
present will be announced. If the
shareholders present in the meeting
represent less than half of the outstanding
shares, the Chairman shall announce the
postponement of the meeting, but the time
for postponement shall not be longer than
one hour, and only two instances for 4
post-ponement are allowed. The Chairman
may announce the meeting is adjourned if
there remain insufficient shareholders who
represent 1/3 of shareholding to attend the
meeting after two meetings postponed. In_
the event of a virtual shareholders
meeting, this Corporation shall also
declare the meeting adjourned at the
virtual meeting platform.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

2 If the number of
shareholders who are
present after two instances
of postponement represent
more than 1/3 of the
outstanding shares, the
Company may make
provisional division
pursuant to Paragraph 1,
Article 175 of the Company
Act and notify the
shareholders with the
provisional decision for
another round of the session
to be held within 1 month
thereafter.

3 If the shareholders who are
present in the session before
its adjournment represent
more than half of the
outstanding shares, the
Chairman may refer the
provision decision to a new
round of balloting pursuant
to Article 174 of the
Company Act.

2 If the number of shareholders who are
present after two instances of
postponement represent more than 1/3 of
the outstanding shares, the Company may
make provisional division pursuant to
Paragraph 1, Article 175 of the Company
Act and notify the shareholders with the
provisional decision for another round of
the session to be held within 1 month
thereafter. In the event of a virtual
shareholders meeting, shareholders
intending to attend the meeting online shall

re-register to this Corporation in
accordance with Article 6.

3 When, prior to conclusion of the meeting,
the attending shareholders represent a
majority of the total number of issued
shares, the chair may resubmit the
tentative resolution for a vote by the
shareholders meeting pursuant to Article
174 of the Company Act.

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 11 | Expression of opinions by Expression of opinions by shareholders Cooperate with

shareholders
1~6 Omitted

1~6 Omitted.

7 Where a virtual shareholders meeting is

convened, shareholders attending the
virtual meeting online may raise
questions in writing at the virtual
meeting platform from the chair
declaring the meeting open until the
chair declaring the meeting adjourned.
No more than two questions for the
same proposal may be raised. Each
question shall contain no more than 200

words. The regulations in paragraphs 1
to 5 do not apply.

8 As long as questions so raised in
accordance with the preceding
paragraph are not in violation of the
regulations or beyond the scope of a
proposal, it is advisable the questions be

disclosed to the public at the virtual
meeting platform.

the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 13 | 1 Shareholders of the Company | 1 A shareholder shall be entitled to one Cooperate with
are entitled to 1 vote for each vote for each share held, except when the public
share in holding unless the shares are restricted shares or are | version to
otherwise specified by law. deemed non-voting shares under update

2 Omitted.

3 The expression of votes by
correspondence or electronic
means as mentioned in the
previous paragraph shall be
delivered to the office of the
Company 5 days prior to the
scheduled date of the session.
If there are repetitions in the
expression of intent, the
initial expression shall stand.
However, exception is
granted if the shareholder
issues a proper declaration to
withdraw the previous vote.

4 If a particular shareholder
desires to attend the session
of the Shareholders’ Meeting
after casting the vote by
correspondence or electronic
means, it shall revoke the
previous expression of intent
in voting in the same means
as casting the votes no later
than 2 days prior to the
scheduled date of the session,
or the votes cast by
correspondence or electronic
means shall be valid. If the
shareholder has exercised
written or electronic votes,
and at the same time
delegated a proxy to attend
the shareholders meeting,
then the voting decision
exercised by the proxy shall
prevail.

Article 179, paragraph 2 of the
Company Act.

2 Omitted.

3 The expression of votes by
correspondence or electronic means as
mentioned in the previous paragraph shall
be delivered to the office of the Company
2 days prior to the scheduled date of the
session. If there are repetitions in the
expression of intent, the initial expression
shall stand. However, exception is
granted if the shareholder issues a proper

declaration to withdraw the previous vote.

4 If a particular shareholder desires to
attend the session of the Shareholders’
Meeting or Online after casting the vote
by correspondence or electronic means, it
shall revoke the previous expression of
intent in voting in the same means as
casting the votes no later than 2 days
prior to the scheduled date of the session,
or the votes cast by correspondence or
electronic means shall be valid. If the
shareholder has exercised written or
electronic votes, and at the same time
delegated a proxy to attend the
shareholders meeting, then the voting
decision exercised by the proxy shall
prevail.

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
5 The Shareholders Assembly | 5 The Shareholders Assembly shall make Cooperate with
shall make decisions in a decisions in a session with the presence of | the public
session with the presence of shareholders representing more than half | version to
shareholders representing of the outstanding shares and the consent | update
more than half of the by a simple majority of the shareholders
outstanding shares and the in the session unless the Company Act or
consent by a simple majority other applicable laws specify otherwise.
of the shareholders in the At the time of a vote, for each
session unless the Company proposal, the chair or a person
Act or other applicable laws designated by the chair shall first
specify otherwise. announce the total number of voting
rights represented by the attending
6~7 Omitted shareholders, followed by a poll of the
shareholders. After the conclusion of
8 he balloting shall be carried the meeting, on the same day it is held,
out at the venue of the the results for each proposal, based on
Shareholders’ Meeting, and the numbers of votes for and against
the result shall be announced and the number of abstentions, shall
on the scene and tracked on be entered into the MOPS.
record.
6~7 Omitted

8 Vote counting for shareholders meeting | Cooperate with
proposals or elections shall be conducted | the public
in public at the place of the shareholders | version to
meeting. Immediately after vote update
counting has been completed, the
results of the voting, including the
statistical tallies of the numbers of
votes, shall be announced on-site at the
meeting, and a record made of the vote.

9 When this Corporation convenes a Cooperate with
virtual shareholders meeting, after the | the public
chair declares the meeting open, version to
shareholders attending the meeting update

online shall cast votes on proposals and
elections on the virtual meeting
platform before the chair announces the
voting session ends or will be deemed
abstained from voting.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

10 In the event of a virtual shareholders

meeting, votes shall be counted at once
after the chair announces the voting
session ends, and results of votes and
elections shall be announced

immediately.

11 When this Corporation convenes a

hybrid shareholders meeting, if
shareholders who have registered to
attend the meeting online in accordance

with Article 6 decide to attend the
physical shareholders meeting in
person, they shall revoke their
registration two days before the
shareholders meeting in the same
manner as they registered. If their
registration is not revoked within the
time limit, they may only attend the
shareholders meeting online.

12 When shareholders exercise voting

rights by correspondence or electronic
means, unless they have withdrawn the
declaration of intent and attended the
shareholders meeting online, except for
extraordinary motions, they will not
exercise voting rights on the original
proposals or make any amendments to
the original proposals or exercise voting

rights on amendments to the original
proposal.

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

Article 15

1~3 Omitted

1~3 Omitted

4 Where a virtual shareholders meeting is
convened, in addition to the particulars
to be included in the meeting minutes as
described in the preceding paragraph,
the start time and end time of the
shareholders meeting, how the meeting is

convened, the chair's and secretary's
name, and actions to be taken in the
event of disruption to the virtual meeting

platform or participation in the meeting
online due to natural disasters, accidents

or other force majeure events, and how
issues are dealt with shall also be
included in the minutes.

5 When convening a virtual-only
shareholder meeting, other than
compliance with the requirements in the
preceding paragraph, this Corporation
shall specify in the meeting minutes
alternative measures available to
shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual-only shareholders
meeting online

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

Article 16

Announcement

1. The Company shall keep
track on and compile the
statistical data on the quantity of
shares represented through
assignment or represented by
proxies in the required format on
the day of the session, and
disclose them explicitly on the
scene of the meeting.

2 Omitted

Public disclosure

1 This Corporation shall compile in the
prescribed format a statistical statement of the
number of shares obtained by solicitors through
solicitation, the number of shares represented
by proxies and the number of shares
represented by shareholders attending the
meeting by correspondence or electronic
means, and shall make an express disclosure of
the same at the place of the shareholders
meeting. The Company shall keep track on and
compile the statistical data on the quantity of
shares represented through assignment or
represented by proxies in the required format on|
the day of the session, and disclose them
explicitly on the scene of the meeting. In the
event a virtual shareholders meeting, this

Corporation shall upload the above
meeting materials to the virtual meeting
platform at least 30 minutes before the
meeting starts, and keep this information

disclosed until the end of the meeting.

2 During this Corporation's virtual
shareholders meeting, when the meeting
is called to order, the total number of
shares represented at the meeting shall
be disclosed on the virtual meeting
platform. The same shall apply whenever

the total number of shares represented at

the meeting and a new tally of votes is
released during the meeting.

3 Omitted

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

Cooperate with
the public
version to
update

The original
second item
moved to the
thirth item
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and
after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 19 Disclosure of information at virtual Cooperate with
meetings the public
In the event of a virtual shareholders version to
meeting, this Corporation shall disclose update
real-time results of votes and election
immediately after the end of the voting
session on the virtual meeting platform
according to the regulations, and this
disclosure shall continue at least 15
minutes after the chair has announced the
meeting adjourned.
Article 20 Location of the chair and secretary of Cooperate with
virtual-only shareholders meeting the public
When this Corporation convenes a version to
virtual-only shareholders meeting, both update
the chair and secretary shall be in the
same location, and the chair shall declare
the address of their location when the
meeting is called to order.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 21 Handling of disconnection Cooperate with
1 In the event of a virtual shareholders the public
meeting, this Corporation may offer a version to
simple connection test to shareholders update

prior to the meeting, and provide
relevant real-time services before and
during the meeting to help resolve
communication technical issues.

2 In the event of a virtual shareholders
meeting, when declaring the meeting
open, the chair shall also declare, unless

under a circumstance where a meeting
is not required to be postponed to or
resumed at another time under Article
44-20, paragraph 4 of the Regulations
Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public
Companies, if the virtual meeting
platform or participation in the virtual
meeting is obstructed due to natural
disasters, accidents or other force
majeure events before the chair has
announced the meeting adjourned, and
the obstruction continues for more than

30 minutes, the meeting shall be
postponed to or resumed on another
date within five days, in which case
Article 182 of the Company Act shall

not apply.

3 For a meeting to be postponed or
resumed as described in the preceding
paragraph, shareholders who have not
registered to participate in the affected
shareholders meeting online shall not
attend the postponed or resumed
session.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

4 For a meeting to be postponed or
resumed under the second paragraph,
the number of shares represented by,
and voting rights and election rights
exercised by the shareholders who have
registered to participate in the affected
shareholders meeting and have
successfully signed in the meeting, but
do not attend the postpone or resumed
session, at the affected shareholders
meeting, shall be counted towards the
total number of shares, number of
voting rights and number of election
rights represented at the postponed or
resumed session.

5 During a postponed or resumed session
of a shareholders meeting held under
the second paragraph, no further
discussion or resolution is required for
proposals for which votes have been cast

and counted and results have been
announced, or list of elected directors
and supervisors.

6 When this Corporation convenes a
hybrid shareholders meeting, and the
virtual meeting cannot continue as
described in second paragraph, if the
total number of shares represented at
the meeting, after deducting those
represented by shareholders attending
the virtual shareholders meeting online,
still meets the minimum legal
requirement for a shareholder meeting,
then the shareholders meeting shall
continue, and not postponement or
resumption thereof under the second
paragraph is required.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause

Original clause

Clauses after amendment

Reason for
amendment

7 Under the circumstances where a
meeting should continue as in the
preceding paragraph, the shares
represented by shareholders attending
the virtual meeting online shall be
counted towards the total number of
shares represented by shareholders
present at the meeting, provided these
shareholders shall be deemed abstaining

from voting on all proposals on meeting
agenda of that shareholders meeting.

8 When postponing or resuming a
meeting according to the second
paragraph, this Corporation shall
handle the preparatory work based on
the date of the original shareholders
meeting in accordance with the
requirements listed under Article 44-20,
paragraph 7 of the Regulations
Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public

Companies.

9 For dates or period set forth under
Article 12, second half, and Article 13,
paragraph 3 of Regulations Governing
the Use of Proxies for Attendance at
Shareholder Meetings of Public
Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph

2, Article 44-15, and Article 44-17,
paragraph 1 of the Regulations
Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public
Companies, this Corporations hall
handle the matter based on the date of
the shareholders meeting that is
postponed or resumed under the second
paragraph.
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Appendix 6 (continued)

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.
Mapping of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meeting” before and

after the amendment

Clause Original clause Clauses after amendment irel:rsl(c)lrrlni(;lrt

Article 22 Handling of digital divide Cooperate with

When convening a virtual-only the public
shareholders meeting, this Corporation version to
shall provide appropriate alternative update
measures available to shareholders with

difficulties in attending a virtual

shareholders meeting online.

Article 23 | This Procedure shall be This Procedure shall be subject to the Original Article
subject to the approval of the | approval of the Shareholders’ Meeting before | 19
Shareholders’ Meeting before | coming into force. The same procedure is Cooperate with
coming into force. The same | applicable to any amendment thereto. the newly added

procedure is applicable to any
amendment thereto.

items to defer
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Appendix 7

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

Article 4:

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Company Corporate Charter (Before Amendment)

Chapter 1 General Principles
The Company is duly incorporated in accordance with the Company Act bearing the
title of Flytech Technology Company Limited.
(The name in Chinese is H#FH FLH L5 A2 )

The Company's business operation is as follows:

(1) CCO01110 Computers and Computing Peripheral Equipment Manufacturing

(2) CC01060 Wired Communication Equipment and Apparatus Manufacturing

(3) CC01070 Telecommunication Equipment and Apparatus Manufacturing

(4) CCO01080 Electronic Parts and Components Manufacturing

(5) CCO01030 Electric Appliance and Audiovisual Electric Products Manufacturing

(6) CCO01120 Data Storage Media Manufacturing and Duplicating

(7) CCO01101 Restrained Telecom Radio Frequency Equipment and Materials
Manufacturing

(8) CEO01030 Photographic and Optical Equipment Manufacturing

(9) F113050 Wholesale of Computing and Business Machinery Equipment

(10) F116010 Wholesale of Photographic Equipment

(11) F118010 Wholesale of Computer Software

(12) F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials

(13) F213030 Retail sale of Computing and Business Machinery Equipment

(14) F218010 Retail Sale of Computer Software

(15) F216010 Retail Sale of Photographic Equipment

(16) 1301010 Software Design Services

(17) 1301020 Data Processing Services

(18) 1301030 Digital Information Supply Services

(19) 1501010 Product Designing

(20) E605010 Computing Equipment Installation Construction

(21) 72799999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except
those that are subject to special approval.

The Company is headquartered in Taipei City and may establish branches at home and
abroad at the resolution of the Board and the approval of the competent authority

where necessary.

The Company may act as a guarantor in favor of a third party as dictated by business
operation.
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Article 5:

Article 6:

Article 7:

Article 8:

Article 9:

Article 10:

Article 11:

Article 12:

Article 13:

Article 14:

The total investment of the Company is not governed by the limit of total investment
under the Company Act.

Public announcements of the Company shall be duly made in accordance with Article
28 of The Company Act.

Chapter 2 Share capital
The Company has stated capital of NT$2.2 billion evenly split up into 220,000,000
shares (including 5,000,000 shares reserved for ESO, which may be issued in tranches)
at NT$10/share. These shares will be offered by the Board in tranches under
authorization.

The Company’s shares are ordered with the signature or seal of company’s director
affixed for lawful issuance.

The Company is not required to prepare a hard copy of share certificates but shall
register with the central depository of securities.

No share transfer is allowed in the period of 60 days prior to a regular session of the
Shareholders’ Meeting and 30 days prior to a special session of the Shareholders’
Meeting, or, 5 days prior to the dividend day or day for the payment of other benefits.

Unless the law provides otherwise, the Company shall duly observe the “Regulations
Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies” in the
administration of shareholders’ affairs.

Chapter 3 Shareholders Meetings
The Shareholders’ Meeting convenes in regular sessions and special sessions. Regular
sessions will be held within 6 months after the end of the fiscal year. Special sessions
will be called for under law where necessary.

If a particular shareholder cannot attend a session of the Shareholders’ Meeting, such
shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the session by using the power of attorney
prepared by the Company specifying the scope of authorization, and affix the
authorized signature/seal to the power of attorney. Unless the Company Act provides
otherwise, the appointment of a proxy to attend the session of the Shareholders
Assembly shall be governed by the “Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for
Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies”.

Unless the law provides otherwise, shareholders are entitled to 1 vote per holding of
each share.

Except otherwise regulated by The Company Act, a shareholders meeting resolution is
passed when more than half of all outstanding shares are represented in the meeting,
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Article 14-1:

Article 15:

Article 15-1:

Article 16:

Article 17:

Article 18:

Article 18-1:

Article 19:

and is approved by more than half of all voting rights represented during the meeting.

The resolutions reached in the shareholders’ meeting must be documented in the
minutes of meeting for the signature or seal of the Chairman. The minutes of meeting
must be distributed to the shareholders in 20 days. The distribution can be made by
way of public announcement.

Chapter 4 Directors and Audit Committee

The Company established 7 seats of Directors who will be elected by the Shareholders
Assembly under the nomination system. Each Director has a tenure of 3 years in office
and may assume a second term of office if reelected. The Company shall take
professional liability insurance for the protection of the Directors within their term of
office for the protection of Directors in performing their professed duties.

Of the aforementioned seats of Directors, at least 3 shall be reserved for Independent
Directors. The seats for Independent Directors shall not fall below 1/5 of all the seats
of Directors. Independent Directors shall be elected under a nomination system. The
qualification, nomination and other regulations related to Independent Directors shall
be governed by applicable legal rules of the competent authority of securities.

The Company established the Audit Committee in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Act. All members of the committee are Independent Directors. The function
of the Audit Committee and its members and related matters shall be governed by
applicable legal rules of the competent authority of securities.

The Directors shall be organized into the Board of Directors. A Chairman shall be
elected among the Directors in a session attended by at least 2/3 of the Directors and a
simple majority of the Directors in session and may elect one Vice Chairman in the
same manner. The Chairman is the deputy agent of the Company.

The proposal resolutions reached in the board meeting, unless otherwise provided in
the Company Act, should be with the attendance of a majority of the directors and the
consent of a majority of the directors presented.

In the absence of the Chairman, the use of a proxy shall be governed by Article 208 or
Article 205 of the Company Act. If the Board of Directors meeting proceeds by way of
video conferencing, those who participate in the meeting using video conferencing are
considered to have attended the meeting in person.

The convention of a Board of Directors meeting must be advised to all Directors with
detailed agenda at least 7 days in advance. However, meetings can be held in shorter
notices in case of emergency. The notice of meeting of the Board may be served via
E-mail or fax in lieu of writing.

Directors shall attend the session of the Board in person. If a particular Director cannot
attend a session in person, such Director may appoint a proxy in writing to attend the
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Article 20:

Article 21:

Article 22:

Article 23:

Article 23-1:

session with full power of attorney. Each Director may act as the proxy of only one
other Director.

Remuneration to the Directors shall be unaffected by the profit position of the
Company. The Board is authorized to grant remuneration to the Directors in
commensuration with their participation in the operation of the Company and the
contribution value to the Company with reference to industry level. Remuneration
shall be effected pursuant to Article 23 if there is a profit.

Chapter 5 Manager
The Company employs Manager; the appointment, dismissal, and remuneration of
whom shall comply with Article 29 of The Company Act.

Chapter 6 Accounting
At the end of each fiscal year, the Board shall prepare the following statements and
reports and present them to the Shareholders’ Meeting for ratification.
(1) Business Report
(2) Financial Statements
(3) Earnings distribution or loss reimbursement proposal.

The Company shall appropriate 3%~15% as remuneration to employees and no more
than 3% as remuneration to Directors from its earnings of the year, if applicable,
subject to the special procedure of the Board in resolution, and report to the
Shareholders’ Meeting for ratification.

Remuneration to employees may be paid in cash or stock. The recipients include the
employees of subsidiaries meeting specific conditions. However, when the company
still has accumulated losses, an amount equivalent to the loss should be reserved for
making up the loss.

The Company shall appropriate its earnings, if applicable, for payment of income tax,
followed by the write-off of loss carried forward, and 10% as legal reserve. Where
necessary and as required by law, the Company shall also appropriate a special reserve.
If there is still a balance, pool up with the undistributed income accumulated in
previous years for distribution at the proposal of the Board subject to the resolution of
the Shareholders’ Meeting. The amount of distribution shall not fall below 60% of
write-off of loss carried forward, appropriation of legal reserve, and special reserve
from the earnings.

The Company takes into account equilibrium and stability in making its dividend
policy, and in conjunction with the specific nature of the overall environment and the
development of the industry with consideration of long-term financial planning and
satisfaction of cash flow needs of the shareholders. Likewise, cash dividend shall not
fall below 10% of the total cash dividend and stock dividend resolved to distribute in
the year.
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Chapter 7 Appendix
Article 24:  Any matters that are not addressed in the Company Corporate Charter (Articles of
Incorporation) shall be governed by The Company Act.

Article 25:  The Company Corporate Charter (Articles of Incorporation) was established on July 6,
1984.
The 1st amendment was implemented on July 25, 1984.
The 2nd amendment was implemented on April 16, 1985.
The 3rd amendment was implemented on December 4, 1985.
The 4th amendment was implemented on July 30, 1987.
The 5th amendment was implemented on April 11, 1988.
The 6th amendment was implemented on December 24, 1990.
The 7th amendment was implemented on December 31, 1999.
The 8th amendment was implemented on May 4, 2000.
The 9th amendment was implemented on August 31, 2000.
The 10th amendment was implemented on April 10, 2001.
The 11th amendment was implemented on May 18, 2002.
The 12th amendment was implemented on May 18, 2004.
The 13th amendment was implemented on May 18, 2004.
The 14th amendment was implemented on June 14, 2006.
The 15th amendment was implemented on June 15, 2007.
The 16th amendment was implemented on June 16, 2009.
The 17th amendment was implemented on June 15, 2010.
The 18th amendment was implemented on June 9, 2011.
The 19th amendment was implemented on June 15, 2012.
The 20th amendment was implemented on June 11, 2014.
The 21th amendment was implemented on June 8, 2016.
The 22th amendment was implemented on June 8, 2017.
The 23th amendment was implemented on June 8, 2018.
The 24th amendment was implemented on June 10, 2020.
The 25th amendment was implemented on July 7, 2021.
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Appendix 8

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

Flytech Technology Co., Ltd.

Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meetings (Before Amendment)

This Procedure is instituted in accordance with the Corporate Governance Best
Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM-listed Companies for the establishment of a
viable corporate governance system under the Shareholders’ Meeting, vitalization of

the monitoring function and strengthening the function of management.

Unless otherwise specified by other applicable laws or the Articles of Incorporation of
the Company, the parliamentary procedure of the Shareholders’ Meeting of the

Company shall be governed by This Procedure.

Calling for the session of the Shareholders’ Meeting and notice of session

1. The Board shall call for the session unless otherwise specified in other applicable

laws.

2.  The Company shall have the Annual Meeting of Shareholders notice, proxy and
the proposal and information on admission, discussions and directors election and
dismissal compiled into electronic files and uploaded to the MOPS 30 days prior
to the annual meeting of shareholders or 15 days prior to the extraordinary
meeting of shareholders. Also, the Annual Meeting Handbook and the
supplementary information are compiled into electronic files and uploaded to the
MOPS 21 days prior to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders or 15 days prior to
the extraordinary meeting of shareholders. The Annual Meeting Handbooks and
the supplementary information are made available to shareholders 15 days prior
to the annual meeting of shareholders; also, on display at the Company’s and its

Stock Agent’s and distributed to shareholders at the meeting place.

3. The notice and announcement shall include information on the reason for the
session, and may be delivered via electronic means at the consent of the

addressees.

4. The election or dismissal of directors, amendments to the Company Corporate
Charter (Articles of Incorporation), capital reduction, application for delisting,
permission of competition by directors, converting earnings to capital gains,
converting reserve to capital gains, dissolution, merger, division or the Company
Act, and the Stock Exchange Act shall be stated in the reasons and the material

information for convening the meeting not in the motion.

5. Shareholders holding more than 1% of the outstanding shares issued by the
Company may propose motions with the Company in the regular session.
However, it is limited to one proposal and the more than one proposals presented
will not be discussed in the meeting. However, the Board of Directors may
include any shareholder’s motion suggesting the promotion of public welfare or

performance of social responsibility by the company.
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Article 4:

Article 5:

Article 6:

If any of the motions presented by shareholders are required for exclusion as
motions in the agenda pursuant to Article 172-1 of the Company Act, the Board
may exclude the motions from the agenda.

The Company shall allow at least 10 days for announcement of acceptance of
motions presented by shareholders, submission in writing or by electronic means,
the status of the motions and the processing period prior to the period during
which transaction of shares is prohibited before session of the Shareholders’
Meeting.

Each motion shall be limited to 300 words, or it will not be considered for listing
as a motion in the agenda. Shareholders who present motions shall attend the
session in person or appoint a proxy to attend the session and engage in the
discussion on the motions.

The result of handling the motions shall be made known to the shareholders who
presented the motions prior to the notification day of the session of Shareholders’
Meeting, and list the motions conforming to the requirements of this article on the
notice of session. The board of directors is to give the reason why the
shareholder's proposal is not included for discussion in shareholders’ meeting.

Shareholders may use the power of attorney prepared by the Company to appoint a

proxy to attend each session of the Shareholders Assembly by specifying the scope of

authorization.

1.

Each shareholder may issue one power of attorney to appoint only 1 proxy. The
power of attorney shall be delivered to the Company 5 days prior to the session of
the Shareholders’ Meeting. In case of repeated authorization, the authorization
which comes first shall be served. However, exception is granted if the
shareholder issues a proper declaration to withdraw the previous proxy
arrangement.

If a power of attorney was delivered to the Company and the shareholder
concerned desires to attend the session, such shareholder shall notify the
Company in writing to revoke the power of attorney previously undertaken no
later than 2 days before the session of the Shareholders’ Meeting, or it shall be
deemed the presence and the vote of the shareholder in the session is represented

by proxy.

The principle of choosing the place and time for the sessions of the Shareholders’

Meeting.

The shareholders meeting must be held at a location that is suitable and convenient for

shareholders to attend. The meeting must not commence anytime earlier than 9AM or

later than 3PM. Independent Directors' opinions must be fully taken into consideration

when deciding the time and venue of the meeting.

Preparation of sign-in registry and related documents

1.

The Company shall prepare a sign-in registry for the shareholders and the proxies
(hereinafter collectively known as “shareholders™) to sign-in for attendance, or,
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Article 7:

Article 8:

Article 9:

the shareholders who are present shall surrender their sign-in card in lieu of
sign-in.

The Company shall have the Agenda Handbook, annual reports, attendance card,
statement slip, ballots, and other meeting materials delivered to the shareholders
presented; also, the ballot will be distributed to the directors for the election of
directors, if any.

Shareholders shall attend the session of the Shareholders’ Meeting with the
attendance card, sign-in card, or other certification documents. Proxies shall
present the power of attorney of their principals and their personal identification
document for confirmation.

Where the shareholders may be government entities or institutions, the number of
representatives to the session may be more than 1 person. The number of legal
person entrusted to attend the shareholders’ meeting is limited to 1 person.

The chairman and observers of the Shareholders’ Meeting

1.

If the convention of the Shareholders’ Meeting is called by the Board, the
Chairman of the Board shall preside over the session. In the absence of the
Chairman, or the Chairman cannot perform its professed duties, the Vice
Chairman shall act on behalf of and in the name of the Chairman. If there is no
Vice Chairman, or in the absence of the Vice Chairman, or the Vice Chairman
cannot perform the professed duties, the Chairman shall appoint one Executive
Director to act as the proxy for the Chairman to preside over the session. If there
is no Executive Director, the Chairman shall appoint a particular Director to act
on behalf of and in the name of the Chairman. If not, the Executive Directors or
Directors shall nominate one among themselves to preside over the session.

At least half of the Directors shall be present in a session of the Shareholders’
Meeting called by the Board.

Where the session of the Shareholders’ Meeting may be called by a third party
other than the Board, the person who called for the session shall act as the
chairman. If there are 2 persons or more called for the session, they should
nominate one among themselves to preside over the session.

The Company may appoint the lawyers, certified public accountants being
retained or related persons to attend the session of the Shareholders’ Meeting as
observers.

The session shall be tracked by voice recording or videotaping.

The Company should have the entire meeting of shareholders taped in audio or video

recording and stored for at least one year. However, if a shareholder makes a litigious

claim against The Company according to Article 189 of The Company Act, the above

mentioned documents must be retained until the end of the litigation.

The attendance to the session of the Shareholders’” Meeting shall be based on the

quantity of outstanding shares being represented. The number of shares represented

during the meeting is calculated based on the amount registered in the attendance log
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or the attendance cards collected, plus the amount of shares whose voting rights are

exercised through proxy forms or electronic methods.

1. The Chairman shall announce the commencement of the session when the time
has come, at the same time, relevant information such as the number of
non-voting rights and the number of shares present will be announced. If the
shareholders present in the meeting represent less than half of the outstanding
shares, the Chairman shall announce the postponement of the meeting, but the
time for postponement shall not be longer than one hour, and only two instances
for 4 postponement are allowed. The Chairman may announce the meeting is
adjourned if there remain insufficient shareholders who represent 1/3 of
shareholding to attend the meeting after two meetings postponed.

2. If the number of shareholders who are present after two instances of postponement
represent more than 1/3 of the outstanding shares, the Company may make
provisional division pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 175 of the Company Act and
notify the shareholders with the provisional decision for another round of the
session to be held within 1 month thereafter.

3. If the shareholders who are present in the session before its adjournment represent
more than half of the outstanding shares, the Chairman may refer the provision
decision to a new round of balloting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act.

Article 10:  Discussion of the motions

1. If the Board calls for the session of the Shareholders’ Meeting, it shall prepare the
agenda. Voting on each motion (including extempore motion and amendment to
original motions) is required. The meeting shall unfold in accordance with the
agenda. The agenda cannot be changed unless the Shareholders Meeting resolved
otherwise.

2.  Where the session of the Shareholders’ Meeting may be called by third parties
other than the Board, the aforementioned rules shall stand.

3. Before the end of the discussion of motions on the agenda as stated in previous 2
paragraphs (including extemporary motions), the Chairman shall not announce for
the adjournment of the session unless the Shareholders” Meeting resolved
otherwise. If the Chairman acts in defiance of the parliamentary rules and thereby
announces the adjournment of the session, other members of the Board shall take
immediate action to assist the shareholders in session to keep the session in order.
Accordingly, the shareholders in session shall nominate another person to act as
the chairman to continue the session by a simple majority.

4. The Chairman shall provide the opportunity for the description and discussions of
the motions and the amendment or extemporary motions proposed by the
shareholders and conclude the discussion and proceed to balloting at a point
where discussion is deemed sufficient and arrange adequate voting time.

Article 11: ~ Expression of opinions by shareholders
1. Shareholders shall put down the summary of the speech on the slip provided, the
account number (or attendance pass number), and account title. The Chairman
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Article 12:

Article 13:

shall arrange the priority for the forum.

Shareholders in session who just submitted the message slip but did not deliver
the speech shall be deemed to have no opinion expressed. If the shareholder's
actual comments differ from those stated in the Speak Request Form, the actual
comments shall prevail.

Each shareholder may have the floor for delivery of the speech on the same
motion once only, and may take the floor twice only at the approval of the
Chairman. Only 5 minutes is allowed for each speech. If the content of the speech
defies the parliamentary rules or deviates from the motion, the Chairman shall
interrupt the speech.

If a particular shareholder is presenting a speech, other shareholders shall not
interfere unless under the consent of the Chairman or the shareholder who is
presenting the speech, or the Chairman shall stop any interference or interruption.
If a particular institutional shareholder appointed more than 2 representatives to
the session, only 1 person may take the floor for delivery of speech on the same
motion.

After a particular shareholder has delivered a speech, the Chairman shall respond
to any query or appoint designated persons to respond to the queries.

The calculation of shares for voting and the system of recusal

1.

The votes to be cast by shareholders shall be taken on the basis of the number of
shares represented.

In balloting, shareholders holding the shares without voting rights are excluded
for the total outstanding shares bearing voting rights.

For motions that may involve the interest of particular shareholders or affect the
interest of the Company, the shareholders concerned shall recuse from the
balloting on these motions. Likewise, these shareholders shall not appoint proxies
to participate in balloting.

The aforementioned quantity of shares not permitted for voting are excluded from
the total number of voting shares of the shareholders.

If a particular party who has been appointed by 2 or more shareholders as proxy
at the same time, the votes so cast under authorization shall not exceed 3% of the
total voting shares, and the number of votes in excess of this limit will not be
counted unless such party is a trust firm or a share registration agent approved by
the competent authority of securities.

Shareholders of the Company are entitled to 1 vote for each share in holding
unless otherwise specified by law.

Shareholders to exercise their voting rights in writing or by electronic means in
the Shareholders’ Meeting, and the methods of which shall be inscribed in the
notice of Shareholders’ Meeting. Shareholders who have voted in writing or using
the electronic method are considered to have attended the shareholders meeting in
person. However, they waive their rights to participate in any questions and
motions or revisions to the original agendas that may arise during the
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Article 14:

Article 15:

shareholders meeting; it is therefore advisable that the Company avoid the
submission of extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals.

The expression of votes by correspondence or electronic means as mentioned in
the previous paragraph shall be delivered to the office of the Company 5 days
prior to the scheduled date of the session. If there are repetitions in the expression
of intent, the initial expression shall stand. However, exception is granted if the
shareholder issues a proper declaration to withdraw the previous vote.

If a particular shareholder desires to attend the session of the Shareholders’
Meeting after casting the vote by correspondence or electronic means, it shall
revoke the previous expression of intent in voting in the same means as casting
the votes no later than 2 days prior to the scheduled date of the session, or the
votes cast by correspondence or electronic means shall be valid. If the
shareholder has exercised written or electronic votes, and at the same time
delegated a proxy to attend the shareholders meeting, then the voting decision
exercised by the proxy shall prevail.

The Shareholders Assembly shall make decisions in a session with the presence
of shareholders representing more than half of the outstanding shares and the
consent by a simple majority of the shareholders in the session unless the
Company Act or other applicable laws specify otherwise.

If there is an amendment to or a substitute of a particular motion, the Chairman
sets the priority for decision as the original motion. If any of the
amendment/substitute or original motion has been passed, it shall be deemed the
resolution of the motion and no further polling is required.

The Chairman shall appoint scrutineers and polling clerks in witnessing and
monitoring the balloting on the motions. Scrutineers must also be shareholders.
The balloting shall be carried out at the venue of the Shareholders’ Meeting, and
the result shall be announced on the scene and tracked on record.

Points of election

1.

1.

An election of Directors and Supervisors may be held in a session of the
Shareholders’ Meeting, shall proceed in accordance the rules and regulations of
the Company, and the election result shall be announced on the scene, including
the elected directors and the weighted votes casted, and the unelected directors
and the weighted votes casted

The ballots cast in the aforementioned election shall be sealed and signed by the
scrutineers with the affixing of their signatures for keeping at least 1 year.
However, if a shareholder makes a litigious claim against The Company
according to Article 189 of The Company Act, the above mentioned documents
must be retained until the end of the litigation.

The resolutions of the Shareholders’ Meeting shall be kept as minutes of the
meeting on record, affixed with the authorized signature/seal of the Chairman,
and released to the shareholders within 20 days after the session. The
preparation and distribution of the minutes of shareholders’ meeting can be
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Article 16:

Article 17:

Article 18:

processed electronically.

The aforementioned minutes of the meeting on record may be circulated by
announcement.

The minutes of the meeting on record shall contain details of the year, month, day
of the session, the name of the chairman, the means of resolution, the summary of
parliamentary process and voting results (including the weighted votes), of the
meeting. If any election of directors is carried out, the minutes should specify the
votes cast by each candidate. It shall be kept perpetually within the perpetuity of
the Company.

Announcement

1.

The Company shall keep track on and compile the statistical data on the quantity
of shares represented through assignment or represented by proxies in the
required format on the day of the session, and disclose them explicitly on the
scene of the meeting.

Where some of the motions for resolutions may contain significant information
under law or the requirements of the competent authority, the Company shall
transmit such information to MOPS by designated deadline.

The order of the meeting venue

1.

The administrative staff of the Shareholders’ Meeting shall wear arm badges or
ID badges.

The Chairman shall command the prefect team or security guards to keep the
order of the meeting venue. While maintaining order in the meeting, all
picketers or security staffs must wear arm badges which identify their roles as
"Staftf".

The venue may be equipped with loud speaker systems for the shareholders. The
Chairman shall stop any shareholder using other forms of loud speakers in the
expression of opinion at the meeting venue.

Shareholders who defy the parliamentary procedure and interrupt the procedure
of the session, and insubordinate to the instruction of the Chairman, the Chairman
shall command the prefect team or the security guards to escort the shareholders
concerned to vacate from the venue.

Recess, resumption of the session

1.

The Chairman may announce for recess in the course of the session. In the event
of force majeure, the Chairman may announce for a suspension of the session and
announce the time for resuming the session.

If the meeting venue is no longer available before the conclusion of the agenda
(including the extemporary motions), the Shareholders’ Meeting shall resolve to
seek another place as the venue to continue the session.

The Shareholders’ Meeting may resolve to postpone or continue the session
within 5 days pursuant to Article 182 of the Company Act.
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Article 19:  This Procedure shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders’ Meeting before
coming into force. The same procedure is applicable to any amendment thereto.
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Appendix 9

Schedule of Director Shareholding

Directors minimum shareholding and the shareholdings listed in the registry of shareholders:

hareholdi i in th
Title Shareholdings Share .0 dings registered in the
registry of shareholders
Director 8,583,740 28,441,728

2. Directors shareholding list:

Title Name Shareholdings registered in
the registry of shareholders | Note
Chairman Lam, Tai Seng 16,423,263
Director Wang, Wei Wei 11,040,443
Yi Hua Investment Limited
Director ) 78,022
Representative : Chuo, Chun-Hung
. Flytech foundation
Director ) ) 900,000
Representative : Shyu, Jia-Horng
Independent . 0
. Hsieh, Han Chang
director
Independent ] o 0
) Liang, Wei Ming
director
Independent ) o 0
. Chiu, Yi-Chia
director

Book closure day: April 11, 2023
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